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November 1, 2019 
 
 
Mark Merry 
Assistant Director 
Division of Accounting & Auditing 
Office of Chief Financial Officer Jimmy Patronis 
Florida Department of Financial Services 
200 East Gaines Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0353 
 
Re: Manatee County Article V Clerk of Court Compliance Audit 
 
Dear Mr. Merry, 
 
Our responses to the Observations and Recommendations in Audit Report 2019-47 are outlined below. We 
would like to thank your staff for the courtesy and professionalism extended to our staff during the course of 
this audit. 
 
Observation 1:  

During our testing of the Clerk’s office payroll expenditures, we noted two (2) instances in which the cell 
phone allowance, contrary to statutory guidance, had been allocated as court-related costs, or were not 
authorized of record as being a reasonable payroll support cost. 

In CFY 17-18 and CFY 18-19, payroll expenditures of $36 and $15, respectively, for a cell allowance 
was noted. The total for the audit period was $2,739. 

Recommendation 1: 
We recommend that the Clerk’s office allocate as court-related expenditures only those costs authorized 
by Statute. 

Response 1: We concur with this recommendation. These costs were not properly coded to a non-court 
expenditure account at the time of entry into our payroll system. We have updated our process to 
eliminate these questioned costs in the future. 

Observation 2:  
During our testing of the Clerk’s office administrative expenditures, we noted three (3) instances in 
which the expenditure, contrary to statutory guidance, had been allocated as a court cost, or was not 
authorized of record as a reasonable administrative support cost. 

Although counties are required to fund the coast of communications services which includes copiers 
and printers, we noted in CFY 16-17 one (1) copier rental for $152 was allocated to the State. In CFY 
18-19 two (2) copier rentals totaling $220 were allocated as State expenditures. These expenditures 
were for the base amount of the leases and not for any consumables related to copiers. 
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Recommendation 2: 
We recommend that the Clerk’s office ensure that it’s court-related expenditures are allowable 
according to ss. 28.35(3)(a) and 29.008, F.S.  

Response 2: We concur with this finding, although not without noting that “Copier” is not specifically 
included as a county responsibility in ss. 29.008, F.S. We do understand that the evolving nature of 
copier technology has elevated this device to now be identified as a communication device by your 
office and will no longer allow the rental charges for copiers to be charged against our court-related 
expenditures. 

Observation 3:  
The Clerk’s office does not have a clear methodology for allocating payroll expenditures for employees 
performing overhead duties who work on both court and non-court-related functions. Their current 
allocation methodology is based on the FTE ratio of Clerk employees who worked solely on court-related 
functions to those that worked on both court and county-related functions. Upon inquiry, the Clerk’s 
office was unable to provide supporting documentation for the actual time and effort the overhead 
employees spent working on court-related vs. non-court-related functions. 

Recommendation 3: 
We recommend that the Clerk’s office establish a method for sampling employees’ time and effort 
between court-related and non-court related activities to ensure the allocation of payroll and 
administrative expenditures reflects an accurate appropriation of State funds. The methodology should 
include a basis for concluding whether the budgetary calculations are accurate. The Clerk’s office might 
consider using a sampling method such as a time study or guidance such as found in the Code of Federal 
Regulation (2 CFR 200), Appendix V.  

Response 3: We take this recommendation under advisement and will review our methodology for the 
allocation of payroll expenditures for employees performing overhead duties.  

 

Please contact Daniel Wolfson, Finance Director, at (941)741-4010 should you have any questions regarding 
these responses. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Angelina “Angel” Colonneso 
Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller 
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